C/CAG

CITY/COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS OF SAN MATEO COUNTY

Atherton • Belmont • Brisbane • Burlingame • Colma • Daly City • East Palo Alto • Foster City • Half Moon Bay • Hillsborough • Menlo Park Millbrae • Pacifica • Portola Valley • Redwood City • San Bruno • San Carlos • San Mateo • San Mateo County • South San Francisco • Woodside

Agenda

Resource Management and Climate Protection Committee (RMCP)

Date: Wednesday, October 16, 2019 Time: 2:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m.

Location: 155 Bovet Rd., Ground Floor Conference Room, San Mateo

- 1. Introductions
- 2. Public Comment
- 3. Approval of Minutes from August 21, 2019 RMCP Committee meeting

(Kim Springer – Committee Staff) Action

4. Presentation on RICAPS template and tools updates

(Susan Wright – Committee Staff) Information/ Discussion

5. Presentation by Clean Coalition on economic and resilience opportunities implementing microgrid, and new technologies

(John Sarter – Clean Coalition) Information/ Discussion

6. Presentation on solar cost and efficiency trends

(Blake Herrschaft – DNV GL) Information/ Discussion

7. BAWSCA water conservation programs update

(Andree Johnson – BAWSCA) Information/ Discussion

- 8. Committee Member Updates
- 9. Next Scheduled Meeting Date: November 20, 2019

PUBLIC NOTICING: All notices of C/CAG regular Board meetings, standing committee meetings, and special meetings will be posted at the San Mateo County Transit District Office, 1250 San Carlos Ave., San Carlos, CA, and on C/CAG's website at: http://www.ccag.ca.gov.

PUBLIC RECORDS: Public records that relate to any item on the open session agenda for a regular Board meeting, standing committee meeting, or special meeting are available for public inspection. Those public records that are

distributed less than 72 hours prior to a regular Board meeting are available for public inspection at the same time they are distributed to all members, or a majority of the members, of the Board. The Board has designated the City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County (C/CAG), located at 555 County Center, 5th Floor, Redwood City, CA 94063, for the purpose of making public records available for inspection. Such public records are also available on C/CAG's website at: http://www.ccag.ca.gov.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: Public comment is limited to two minutes per speaker. Persons with disabilities who require auxiliary aids or services in attending and participating in this meeting should contact Mima Guilles at (650) 599-1406, five working days prior to the meeting date.

If you have any questions about this agenda, please contact C/CAG staff:

Executive Director: Sandy Wong (650) 599-1409 RMCP Committee Staff: Kim Springer (650) 599-1412

C/CAG - Resource Management and Climate Protection Committee (RMCP)

Minutes of August 21, 2019 Meeting

In Attendance:

Doug Silverstein, Green San Mateo County*
Donna Colson, Mayor Burlingame*
Adrianne Carr, Committee Vice Chair, BAWSCA*
Maryann Moise Derwin, Committee Chair, Councilmember Portola Valley*
Christine Zaugg, Executive Director SSMC*
Diane Papan, Councilmember San Mateo*
Rick DeGolia, Councilmember Atherton*
Ortensia Lopez, Executive Director El Concilio*
Sandy Wong, Director C/CAG
Kim Springer (Staff)
John Allan (Staff)
Lisa Schmidt, Home Energy Analytics (Presenter)
James Tuleya, Home Energy Analytics (Presenter)
Lillian Mirviss, OhmConnect (Presenter)

Not an attendance:

Don Horsley, County Supervisor* Drew Combs, Councilmember Menlo Park* Janet Borgens, Councilmember Redwood City* Bill Chiang, PG&E*

*Committee Member (voting)

1) Introductions

be included.

2) Public Comment

3) Approval of Minutes from May 15, 2019 RMCP Committee meeting

No quorum initially, this was moved to between Item 3 and Item 4. Motion to approve by Adrianne Carr, second by Dianne Papan. Motion passes with 1 abstention (Christine Zaugg)

4) Update on San Mateo County Energy & Water Strategy 2025 project

John Allan provided a progress update on the San Mateo County Energy & Water Strategy 2025. The Strategy is under revision after receiving feedback from a larger stakeholder group. Feedback is still being incorporated and a future version will be sent to elected officials for further feedback.

- Donna Colson requested the Strategy be sent to municipal public works staff.
- Christine Zaugg suggested we make sure safety in terms of water quality be included Kim Springer explained that the scope of the SMC Energy and Water Strategy will be included in the document, and that flood and sea level rise are not wholly included, that some related to water supply will

5) Presentation on HomeIntel residential energy efficiency Program

Lisa Schmidt and James Tuleya from Home Energy Analytics (HEA) delivered a presentation on the benefits of their PG&E-sponsored energy efficiency program which is available to all PG&E customers and focuses on using smart meter data to save energy without significant equipment upgrades or retrofits. HEA is paid based on the site performance savings they help customers achieve and approach each customer as a unique opportunity because they each have unique energy profiles and there is no "typical home"

Since the program launched in August 2017, they've had 1,448 participants and saved 11,960 MMBTUs.

- Rick DeGolia Why doesn't PG&E allow this program for net energy metering (solar) customers?
- Shmidt There are data constraints, PG&E doesn't necessarily have access to NEM data.
- DeGolia This is an example of how PG&E doesn't support solar
- Ortensia Lopez Is this program available in multiple languages?
- Tuleya We are not specifically geared for this, but we try to make it work. Promotional materials are in Spanish and Chinese
- Lopez This is a great product for low-income communities and customers that are just above the low-income threshold.
- Lopez How are you working with CCAs?
- Schmidt There are no issues with this but we don't necessarily work with PCE directly. We are involved in the analysis for the electrification pilot
- Maryann Moise Derwin I've been familiar with this effort for a while and would like to encourage the program as much as possible.
- DeGolia suggested having municipal staff send out in weekly newsletters/blasts
- Donna Colson requested specific language on the program to share with her community.
- Papan What percent of projects require more substantial fixes?
- Tuleya The majority of problems (80%) are related to plug load and behavior and negligence.
- Doug Silverstein Commenting that there's a few different ways to address energy efficiency. He prefers Ohmconnect's model and thinks policy change is the most effective.
- Tuleya To be clear, this goes beyond what people are used to and helps people understand the problems you're pointing out.

6) Presentation on OhmConnect community demand response program

Lillian Mervis with OhmConnect government affairs presented an overview of the OhmConnect business model where customers are paid based on their savings during select hours.

- DeGolia Does it work for NEM customers?
- Mervis Yes, they're marked at 0 (no benefit) if they have negative use

Everything is based on an online platform that includes a dashboard to show savings, progress to goals, etc. Ohm connect makes money through demand response auction mechanism. OhmConnect essentially functions as a power plant but instead of adding energy to the grid, they reduce demand. During the summer of 2019, OhmConnect paid out over \$11M to customers and reduced electricity consumption by 855 megawatt hours. OhmConnect has a strong focus on DACs which account for 15-20% of user base.

- Papan Can a customer lose money on this program?
- Mervis -You can lose profits, but you can't go below 0
- Lopez What are your cultural competencies?
- Mervis This is a priority for us right now
- Springer How is a baseline calculated?
- Mervis We create an updated baseline based on the past 10 days use.

7) Update on countywide Reach Code adoption effort

Springer provided background information on reach code effort including timeline, project partners and the adoption process. Springer provided an update on where each city and town is in the process. Springer emphasized that these are not the most exact details as things are moving quickly and each city is individualizing their approach.

- Zaugg SSMC will likely be presenting awards to cities that pass reach codes.
- Silverstein There's been a lot of investment in this effort but feels like we aren't getting the best return on investment. There is more opportunity for cities to take stronger codes. It's on the leadership of the cities to push for this. There have been two cities that have introduced codes (San Mateo and Menlo Park)
- Papan How many cities are updating versus adopting brand new codes? It seems like it will be much easier for the cities that have already been through the process.
- Silverstein There are still opportunities to push this further, but time is running short. I don't want to be sitting here 2 months later and wishing we could have done more. Looking at other jurisdictions around the bay area and recent news on reach codes, there are different types of codes based on fuels. Menlo Park has gone all electric by saying it's just easier to implement the codes.
- DeGolia Clarifying which buildings are all-electric.
- Silverstein Cities that have already passed reach codes have already done the work for the rest of the cities because the staff reports, and studies are completed. Timing will be the biggest issue for the cities.
- DeGolia Timing is irrelevant, codes can be adopted later. In order to make this successful, the cities need to understand that the reach code doesn't need be taken as is. For every city, there is some modification that will work. PCE needs to pitch this properly. Incremental savings are better than no savings at all.
- Colson Cities should work on a bonus or incentive program rather than penalizing developers for not going all-electric.
- Silverstein Incentives don't work as well because people aren't always concerned about costs. The consistency is better for city staff. There are also concerns that complex requirements create opportunities for loopholes.
- Silverstein Is it appropriate to set an aspirational goal?
- Derwin We can set a goal, but it won't necessarily be met
- DeGolia—We just need more staff and advocates that are bringing it to the council's attention.

8) Presentation on San Mateo Plain Groundwater Basin water elevation monitoring project Springer delivered a short presentation on the groundwater situation in SMC and the history of groundwater use. Hetch Hetchy replaced the use of groundwater for the most part. There has been little historical monitoring of groundwater levels and data shows that the basins are full. Ground water quality is poor currently but better than before. There are still some communities (EPA, Atherton, Menlo Park) that rely on groundwater.

• There were multiple questions clarifying areas and uses of groundwater which were answered by Adrianne Carr.

The Groundwater assessment completed in 2018. SMC not required to manage basin under SGMA. However, monitoring is still a good idea so extra money is being used for a new monitoring project. EKI Environment and Water, Inc was selected to conduct CASGEM monitoring and create a plan for monitoring including identifying specific wells and setting up a database portal. The hope is to put together a funding commitment for ongoing monitoring at 6-month intervals. EKI is working on finalizing stakeholders and reaching out to well owners

• Carr – This has been in the works for a while but has fallen apart without state requirements. It's great that the County is pulling this together. It won't be a large commitment.

9) Committee Member Updates

- Zaugg SSMC Indicator Reports Next effort launching Oct 31st @ Oracle
- Zaugg SSMC Award Ceremony April 2nd, 2020
- Silverstein Land & Water Policy: Backing our Coastside Neighbors August 28th

10) Next Scheduled Meeting Date – September 18, 2019

Date: October 16, 2019

To: Resource Management and Climate Protection Committee

From: Susan Wright, County Office of Sustainability

Subject: Presentation on RICAPS template and tools updates

(For further information contact Kim Springer at 650-599-1412)

RECOMMENDATION

Receive a presentation on RICAPS template and tools updates.

FISCAL IMPACT

None

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

C/CAG and the County developed a set of climate action planning tools known as the Regional Climate Action Planning Suite (RICAPS), with funding from the Bay Area Air Quality Management District, C/CAG, and PG&E, These public tools were developed in 2009 and include the following:

- Climate action plan (CAP) template document,
- Business as usual forecaster,
- Menu of climate action planning measures with a calculation worksheet for each measure,
 and
- Cost-benefit analysis tool.

To support cities in using the tools to develop climate action plans, the San Mateo County Energy Watch program has funded technical assistance and contract with consultant, DNV GL for several years.

Staff are in the process of updating the CAP template document, anticipating that multiple cities, whose current CAPs will "expire" in 2020, will need to update them out to 2030 in the next two years. The current RICAPS template document is provided as an attachment to this report.

Susan Wright, Senior Resource Conservation Specialist in the County Office of Sustainability, will provide a presentation on the process and potential elements included in the update.

ATTACHMENTS

Current RICAPS Template Document on RMCP Website: http://ccag.ca.gov/committees/resource-management-and-climate-protection-committee/

Date: October 16, 2019

To: Resource Management and Climate Protection Committee

From: John Sarter, Clean Coalition

Subject: Presentation by Clean Coalition on economic and resilience opportunities

implementing microgrid, and new technologies

(For further information contact Kim Springer at 650-599-1412)

RECOMMENDATION

Receive a presentation by Clean Coalition on economic and resilience opportunities implementing microgrid, and new technologies.

FISCAL IMPACT

None

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

The RMCP Committee has expressed interest in continuing to receive updates on progress in development of microgrid projects and technologies and has received presentations from Clean Coalition in the past on these topics.

The Clean Coalition has been working on two large-scale microgrid projects. The Calistoga Microgrid (https://clean-coalition.org/community-microgrids/community-microgrids/coalition.org/community-microgrids/goleta-load-pocket/), which are focused on fire and power shut down resilience, respectively.

John Sarter, program manager with the clean coalition, will provide a presentation on these two projects and a new microgrid communication technology platform that will soon be available for these and other smaller-scale projects.

ATTACHMENTS

None

Date: October 16, 2019

To: Resource Management and Climate Protection Committee

From: Blake Herrschaft, DNV GL

Subject: Presentation on solar cost and efficiency trends

(For further information contact Kim Springer at 650-599-1412)

RECOMMENDATION

Receive a presentation on solar cost and efficiency trends.

FISCAL IMPACT

None

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

Solar is the technology on which some many initiatives depend to reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. Electrification of homes and businesses only reduces GHG emissions if the source of electricity is renewable. The reduction of GHG emissions by transitioning to electrified or other cleaner transportation alternatives also depends on low or zero GHG sources of electricity.

Development of energy from sunlight dates all the way back to around 1850, with the first photovoltaic panels around 1880. The technology has become more efficiency and cost effective over time due to the development of new materials and manufacturing breakthroughs.

The California Solar Initiative had a significant effect on reducing the cost of solar and spurred the growth of the industry as well. As we continue to deploy more solar, the cost continues to go down, but at what point will it reach a lowest price and highest efficiency.

Blake Herrschaft, Senior Engineer at DNV GL, will provide a presentation on the trends in solar cost and efficiency.

ATTACHMENTS

None

Date: October 16, 2019

To: Resource Management and Climate Protection Committee

From: Andree Johnson, BAWSCA

Subject: BAWSCA water conservation programs update

(For further information contact Kim Springer at 650-599-1412)

RECOMMENDATION

Receive a BAWSCA water conservation programs update.

FISCAL IMPACT

None

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

The Bay Area Water Supply and Conservation Agency (BAWSCA), which represents the 26 wholesale customers of the San Francisco Regional Water System, continues to work with its member agencies to use water wisely and plan for future water supply reliability.

BAWSCA staff provides short updates on water supply conditions to the RCMP Committee a few times per year. At this meeting, Andree Johnson, Senior Water Resources Specialist, will provide a presentation, which includes: a new Qualified Water Efficient Landscaper Training Program, Water Loss Management Program, and Smart Controller Rebate and Installation Program. She will also discuss BAWSCA's efforts to support agencies in meeting the new statewide water use efficiency targets.

The following is a link to the BAWSCA water conservation website: http://bawsca.org/conserve

ATTACHMENTS

None